Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Financial Report
December 31, 2016

Contents
Independent Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

1-2
3-10

Basic Financial Statements
Statements of Net Position

11

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

12

Statements of Cash Flows

13-14

Statements of Net Position – Component Units

15

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Component Units

16

Notes to the Financial Statements

17-45

Required Information
Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Plan

46

Schedule of Corporation's Contributions NYSLRS Pension Plan

47

Schedule of Corporation's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability NYSLRS Pension Plan

48

Uniform Guidance Audit Requirements
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

49

Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

50

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

51-52

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

53-54

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

55-56

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

57

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors
Erie County Medical Center Corporation
Buffalo, New York
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component units of Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the “Corporation”), a component
unit of the County of Erie, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. The financial statements of ECMC Foundation, Inc., the Grider Initiative, Inc., and
Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component units
of Erie County Medical Center Corporation as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3-10 as well as the pension related data on pages 42-44 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated March 22,
2017 and March 28, 2016 on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of these reports is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. These reports are an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 22, 2017
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The Corporation is considered a component unit of the County of Erie, New York with its core operating
mission being the delivery of quality health care services to all persons in the greater western region of
New York State, including persons in need who lack the ability to pay. The Corporation fully embraces
and is proud to serve as the safety net provider for this region.
To assist the reader in understanding the operations of the Corporation, this required annual report has
been organized into three parts that should be read together:




Management’s discussion and analysis
Financial statements and notes to the financial statements and
Supplemental schedules

Introduction
Management has prepared this Discussion and Analysis providing an overview of the financial position
and results of activities of Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the Corporation or ECMCC) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2016. The purpose of the Discussion and Analysis is to provide the
reader with objective data to evaluate the Corporation. This narrative and the financial statements and
footnotes, are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management.
The financial statements (the statements of net position, the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and the statements of cash flows) present financial information in a form similar to
that used by other government hospitals and have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation include financial data of the Corporation’s
component units (i) ECMC Foundation, Inc. (formerly, ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc.) (ii) The Grider
Initiative, Inc. and (iii) Research For Health in Erie County, Inc., however, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis focuses on the Corporation.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Operations Analysis
As a result of a focus on continuously improving the quality of the care ECMCC delivers and each
patient’s experience, the ongoing collaborative efforts with physicians, the investment in building and
maintaining its culture, the execution of its strategic plan and the investments made over the past five
years, the Corporation completed calendar year 2016 providing a record level of services to Western New
York residents and, given its unique services, to many others beyond this region. The Corporation is
sustaining its role of being the provider of choice for patients, physicians and its own staff. Significant
volumes of patient encounters (not expressed in thousands) are as follows:

Inpatients
Surgeries
Emergency
Outpatients
Dialysis

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

15,238
12,442
61,418
250,707
12,216

16,091
12,712
63,930
252,524
19,926

16,316
12,714
64,698
253,781
21,350

17,789
13,360
66,418
295,676
22,224

18,378
14,364
67,296
305,737
24,617

18,839
14,552
69,290
316,691
27,291

% increase
2011 - 2016
23.6%
17.0%
12.8%
26.3%
123.4%

The favorable growth reflects the trust that the Western New York community, our physicians and our
employees placed in ECMCC and has translated into favorable financial results. Notable achievements in
2016 include:







Recruitment of physicians to bariatric surgery, orthopedic surgery to, cardiology, neurosurgery,
and hospitalist medicine.
Continuation of a five (5) year trend in annual improvements in HCAHPS (Hospital Consumer
Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems) scores.
The Joint Commission accreditation through September 2019 as a result of a successful survey.
National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) recognition for Level 3 patient centered
medical home.
Women’s Choice Award as Best Hospital for Patient Safety
Employee turnover rate reduced by 50% from 12.0% to 6.0%

In addition to the favorable financial performance of the Corporation, the ECMC Foundation, Inc. began a
capital campaign to raise funds for a new Level 1 Trauma Center and Emergency Department and
established record levels of attendance at signature events including: The Springfest Gala, October
breast cancer awareness month, its annual golf tournament and other events. Of particular note is the
growth of the Corporation’s employees participating in the Foundation’s annual fund drive from 336 in
2015 to 1,109 in 2016, a 230% increase in a single year.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Financial Metric Analysis
The Corporation’s total net position decreased $1,387 in 2016 and increased $3,342 in 2015 as a result
of key operating activities discussed above leading to favorable results from operations and net
investment earnings as further discussed below.
Comparative financial ratios for the Corporation as well as blended benchmark median values for 2016
(most recent available) based on the average of published and publicly available data for Urban
Hospitals, Teaching Hospitals and Government Hospitals as well as the average of NYS Public Benefit
Corporation (PBC) hospitals are presented in the following table. The financial statements used for the
calculation of the following ratios, where appropriate, have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation used in the development of the benchmarks, consistent with GAAP for entities not subject to
GASB standards.
ECMCC
2015

2016
Operating margin
Operating cash flow margin
Debt to total capitalization
Debt service coverage
Days cash on hand
Days in accounts receivable
Average age of plant

0.3%
6.3%
63.5%
2.1
74.7
50.3
11.8

0.1%
6.7%
61.9%
2.5
70.8
53.0
12.8

2014
0.2%
7.5%
61.8%
3.0
75.0
44.0
10.0

Blended
Benchmark
2016

PBC
Average
2016

2.0%
10.6%
26.1%
4.2
120.8
46.8
11.5

-5.8%
0.9%
296.8%
0.8
45.4
41.5
16.0

The financial ratios reflect improved results of operations and generally favorable performance compared
to both the blended benchmark and other health care NYS Public Benefit Corporations. The decrease in
net position in 2016 is the net result of an increase from operations of $1,969 that was offset by a
decrease associated with the transfer of certain assets to Erie County of $3,356.
Summary Financial Statements with Analysis
Management is providing the following summary financial statements and variance analysis for certain
financial statement lines where it believes the readers understanding of the financial statements is
enhanced.
Statements of Net Position
Net position is categorized as follows:
Net investment in capital assets: Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding debt and deferred inflows and outflows of resources that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Restricted: Result when constraints placed on the use of the net position are either externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Statements of Net Position (Continued)
Unrestricted: Represents the resources derived primarily from services rendered to patients and other
operating revenues and not meeting the previously listed criteria. These resources are used for
transactions related to the general healthcare and academic operations of the Corporation, and may be
used at the discretion of the Board of Directors to meet current expenses for any purpose.
Condensed Statements of Net Position are as follows:
2016
Assets
Current assets, excluding assets whose
use is limited
Assets whose use is limited
Capital assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

$

Total assets and
deferred outflows
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

187,569
106,297
259,577
34,891
588,334

173,023
124,922
279,812
36,467
614,224

$

6,184

14,546
(18,625)
(20,235)
(1,576)
(25,890)

8.4
(14.9)
(7.2)
(4.3)
(4.2)

120,624

195.1

$

715,142

$

620,408

$

94,734

15.3

$

111,243
464,793
576,036

$

130,424
365,972
496,396

$

(19,181)
98,821
79,640

(14.7)
27.0
16.0

16,481

400.0

(12,476)
(13,847)
24,936
(1,387)

(11.6)
(42.9)
127.3
(1.2)

94,734

15.3

Deferred inflows of resources

20,603

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

94,747
18,411
5,345
118,503

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows and net position

$

126,808

Deferred outflows of resources

2016-2015
$ Change
% Change

2015

$

715,142

4,122

107,223
32,258
(19,591)
119,890

$

620,408

$

Overall, total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased $94,734 from 2015 to 2016, $120,811
of which is associated with deferred outflows of resources relating to the New York State and Local
Retirement System (NYSLRS) Pension Plan.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Statements of Net Position (Continued)
The following variances in total assets are noteworthy:
Total current assets, excluding the current portion of assets whose use is limited, increased by
$14,546 due to the following:
 Cash, cash equivalents and investments decreased by $5,810 largely due to timing of a $25,000
contribution to the NYSLRS retirement system to take advantage of an early payment discount as
well as the timing of accounts payable payments.
 Patient accounts receivable, net, decreased by $461 as a result of improvements in revenue
cycle performance. Increases in volumes noted earlier contributed to a 4.7% growth in average
daily revenue which was offset by a reduction in days revenue in receivable of 2.7 days or 5.1%.
 Other receivables increased by $12,082, of which $20,040 is associated with the award of the
Care Restructuring Enhancement Pilot (CREPS) Program grant offset by decreases in Medicaid
DSH (IGT) and Upper Payment Limit (UPL) program receivables.
 Supplies and prepaid expenses increased by $8,735, of which $8,175 is due to a new note
receivable from a related party.




Assets whose use is limited decreased by $18,625, $8,604 of which is due to the timing of Delivery
System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) grant funds expended and transfers to operating cash to
support the retirement system contribution noted above.
Capital assets, net, decreased by $20,235 due to acquisitions of new capital assets being less than
depreciation expense. Significant investments in capital assets are summarized in a following section.
Other assets decreased by $1,576 largely as a result of transactions with Erie County.

Overall, total liabilities increased $79,640 from 2015 to 2016. Net position had a decrease of $1,387
(1.2%) in 2016 from 2015.
The following variances in total liabilities are noteworthy:
Total current liabilities decreased by $19,181 due to the following:
 Accounts payable and accrued salaries and benefits decreased by $11,821 due to timing of
payments as noted above.
 Other accrued liabilities decreased by $9,295 as a result of a payment made to Erie County of
$7,257.
 Unearned revenue decreased by $8,604 due to receipt of DSRIP grant funds expended.
 Estimated third-party payer settlements increased by $2,347 as a result of anticipated cost report
settlements.



An increase in the net pension liability was recognized in 2016 in the amount of $91,894 due to
changes in actuarial assumptions made by and investment performance of the NYSLRS further
described in Note 9.
Current and long-term portions of self-insured obligations increased by $18,076 due to changes in
actuarial estimates for post-employment health insurance and obligations for self-insured retentions
for malpractice and workers’ compensation claims greater than payments made on those claims.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are as follows:
2016
Net patient services revenue
Disproportionate share revenue (DSH)
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) grants
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Payroll, employee benefits and contract labor
Professional fees
Purchased services
Supplies
Other operating expenses
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) grant expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income before pension expense, amortization
component
Pension expense, amortization component

489,931
71,500
23,966
31,149
616,546

$

Total net non-operating expenses
Net income
Transfer and capital contributions
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year*

297,397
70,260
43,959
74,063
26,250
4,059
27,929
543,917

30,197

9,157

$

* - Net position was restated at December 31, 2014 by (2,483)
due to the adoption of GASB Nos. 68 and 71
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$

-

22,183
12,263
19,467
9,559
63,472

4.7
20.7
432.7
44.3
11.5

17,364
4,120
(1,279)
4,300
(1,820)
19,003
744
42,432

5.8
5.9
(2.9)
5.8
(6.9)
468.2
2.7
7.8

21,040

229.8

20,040

100.0

10,157

9,157

1,000

10.9

8,188

6,390

1,798

28.1

1,969

2,767

(798)

(28.8)

(3,356)

575

(3,931)

(683.7)

(1,387)

3,342

(4,729)

(141.5)

119,890

Net position, end of year

467,748
59,237
4,499
21,590
553,074

314,761
74,380
42,680
78,363
24,430
23,062
28,673
586,349

20,040

Operating income

2016-2015
$ Change
% Change

2015

118,503

116,548
$

119,890

$

3,342

2.9

(1,387)

(1.2)

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Continued)
Overall, operating revenues increased by $63,472 or 11.5% in 2016 with increases attributable to the
following:






Net patient service revenue increased $22,183, or 4.7% in 2016. Volumes increased for both
inpatient and outpatient lines of business. Total discharges increased 2.5% from 18,378 to 18,839.
Outpatient visits increased 3.6% from 305,737 to 316,691. ER visits increased 2.9% from 67,296 to
69,290.
DSH increased by $12,263, or 20.7%, in 2016 principally due to changes in the amount of
uncompensated care provided and changes in estimates for Upper Payment Limit (UPL) funding
associated with Terrace View.
DSRIP grant revenue increased by $19,467 or 432.7% as a result of the maturity of DSRIP program
operations and achievement of DSRIP goals.
Other operating revenue increased by $9,559, or 44.3%, in 2016. During 2016, the Corporation was
awarded a four year grant for the CREPS Program discussed in a subsequent section. The grant
resulted in $20,000 of grant revenue in 2016. This is offset by a decrease in other grant revenue
sources, primarily Interim Access Assurance Fund (IAAF) grants.

Operating expenses increased $42,432 or 7.8%, in 2016. Expense increases are attributable to the
following:


Payroll and employee benefit expenses have increased by $17,364 (5.8%) as the net result of
increases in staffing levels due to the aforementioned volume increases, increased payroll and other
taxes as a result of that growth, wage increases associated with collective bargaining agreements,
increased active employee and retiree health insurance expense offset by productivity improvements
and reduction in overtime usage. Salaries and employee benefit expense decreased by 2.7% of total
operating revenue, from 52.8% in 2015 to 51.1% of total operating revenue in 2016.



Supply expenses have increased from 15.8% of net patient revenue to 16.0% of net patient revenue
due to increases in pharmaceuticals and an increase in surgical volumes.



DSRIP grant expenses have increased as a result of the operations noted above.

Capital Assets, Net, and Long-Term Debt
At December 31, 2016, the Corporation had capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, of $259,577
compared to $279,812 at December 31, 2015, representing a decrease of $20,235 or 7.2%.
The Corporation invested $1,524 in the development of a new Level 1 Trauma Center, and Emergency
Department, including its enabling projects. Construction of this project is expected to begin mid-2017.
In addition, the Corporation invested $1,661 in a new orthopedics center, $357 in its laboratories and
made other routine asset replacements.
At December 31, 2016, the Corporation had $173,983 of long-term debt financing related to its capital
assets.
Forward Looking Factors
Management has prepared the following forward looking factors to assist the reader in understanding the
financial, economic and market factors impacting the Corporation.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Collective Bargaining Agreements
The Corporation operates under three collective bargaining agreements that cover substantially all
employees. In March 2013, Corporation employees of the Civil Service Employee Association (CSEA)
approved a new 5-year contract. This new agreement includes the creation of a sub-bargaining unit which
represents only Corporation employees. The agreement runs through December 31, 2017. Registered
Nurses (RNs) are covered under an agreement with the New York State Nurses Association (NYSNA).
The current agreement was executed in September 2014 and expires on December 31, 2018. The
Corporation’s agreement with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees
(AFSCME) was in effect through December 31, 2015. The contract is being negotiated in concert with the
County of Erie, New York and as of the date of this report, negotiations are ongoing and an agreement
has not yet been reached.
Transactions with the County of Erie
The Corporation is a component unit of the County of Erie, New York. The County has ongoing
contractual and legal obligations to the Corporation and the Corporation has ongoing contractual and
legal obligations to the County.
Health Reform Law
The status of Health Reform including the Health Reform Law has been a matter of a great debate
through the 2016 election cycle and continues through the date of this report. President Trump has
proposed to repeal and replace what President Obama signed into law known as the Patient Protection
and ACA which includes sweeping changes to how health care is provided, and paid for, in the United
States. President Obama subsequently signed the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Bill (the
Reconciliation Act), which modifies the Affordable Care Act in many respects. Together, the Affordable
Care Act and the Reconciliation Act will be referred to as the “Health Reform Law.” The Health Reform
Law expands health insurance coverage to millions of individuals. The health care industry will continue
to be subject to significant new statutory and regulatory requirements, and consequently, structural and
operational challenges. In 2012, the U.S. Supreme Court altered certain aspects of the law. Certain other
aspects of the law have been delayed through Executive Orders issued by the President of the United
States.
Management of the Corporation is continually analyzing the various proposals being promulugated and
the Health Reform Law to better understand its effect on current and projected operations, financial
performance and financial condition. The Health Reform Law is complex and comprehensive, and
includes a myriad of programs, initiatives and changes to existing programs, practices and laws.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP)
On April 14, 2014, Gov. Andrew M. Cuomo announced that New York finalized terms and conditions of an
agreement with the U.S. government that will allow New York State to reinvest $8 billion in federal
savings generated by Medicaid Redesign Team reforms. This program is known as the Delivery System
Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) Program.
The Corporation was selected as one of the lead entities and has worked with others to form a
Performing Provider System (PPS) to achieve the goals established in the waiver. As a result, the
Corporation, and the PPS have been awarded a five (5) year grant which began April 1, 2015. Certain
revenues and expenses associated with this effort, and the related receivables and payables, have been
recognized in the financial statements.
The DSRIP program is designed to stabilize the state’s healthcare safety-net system and to re-align the
state’s delivery system. The overarching goal of the DSRIP program is to help New York and its health
care providers achieve the triple aim of improved population health, improved quality care, and controlled
costs.
Reducing avoidable hospital admissions and avoidable emergency room visits by 25 percent over the
next five years is the DSRIP program’s ultimate objective. Secondarily, the DSRIP program is expected to
preserve and transform New York’s fragile healthcare safety net, ensuring all Medicaid beneficiaries have
access to vital services.
Successful execution of DSRIP-funded projects requires community-focused plans where population
health and health care costs are addressed by hospitals working with other healthcare organizations such
as Federal Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), physician practices, Health Homes (HHs), and Skilled
Nursing Facilities (SNFs). The expectation is to achieve savings by reducing avoidable hospitalizations
and Emergency Department visits, requiring hospitals to “restructure themselves,” reducing beds,
strengthening outpatient and primary-care, and improving alignment with post-acute care settings.
In Western New York, the first step in this process was to form a group of nearly 400 health care partners
led by the Corporation and known as Millennium Collaborative Care (MCC). In December 2014, MCC
submitted its application for DSRIP program funding to begin the process of reform. Through 2016 the
Corporation and MCC have worked diligently to achieve the goals established for the first and second
year of the grant which ends on March 31, 2017.
Care Restructuring Enhancement Pilot (CREPS) Program Grant
The Corporation was awarded a grant under the CREPS Program administered by the New York State
Department of Health. The total award amount is approximately $97,260 over the period April 1, 2016 to
March 31, 2020 in state fiscal year annual distribution amounts of $43,930, $30,010, $13,320, and
$10,000, respectively. The Corporation is responsible for achieving certain goals of the CREPS Program
in each year in order to qualify for the funding. The Corporation believes it has achieved substantially all
of the goals for year 1 of the program and has recognized related revenue in the amount of $20,040.
Contacting the Corporation’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our community and creditors with a general overview of Erie
County Medical Center Corporation’s finances and to demonstrate the Corporation’s accountability for the
resources it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the Chief Financial Officer, Erie County Medical Center Corporation, 462 Grider Street, Buffalo,
New York 14215.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
2015

2016
Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Assets whose use is limited
Patient accounts receivable, net
Other receivables
Supplies, prepaids and other
Total current assets

$

Assets whose use is limited
Capital assets, net
Other assets, net

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pensions
Other
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits
Accrued other liabilities
Unearned revenue
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Total current liabilities

82,448
259,577
34,891
376,916

87,743
279,812
36,467
404,022

588,334

614,224

125,771
1,037
126,808

4,960
1,224
6,184
$

620,408

$

18,811
32,001
20,017
30,203
5,087
5,124
111,243

$

10,619
44,651
19,188
39,498
13,691
2,777
130,424

Deferred inflows of resources - pensions
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position
$

12

29,682
11,331
37,179
67,835
56,900
7,275
210,202

715,142

Total liabilities

See notes to the financial statements.

$

$

Long-term debt, net
Net pension liability
Self-insured obligations
Other

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

15,389
19,814
23,849
67,374
68,982
16,010
211,418

155,172
116,006
190,141
3,474

165,883
24,112
172,688
3,289

576,036

496,396

20,603

4,122

94,747

107,223

18,411
5,345
118,503

32,258
(19,591)
119,890

715,142

$

620,408

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
2016
Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue, net of provision for
bad debts of $10,590 and $10,565 at 2016 and 2015, respectively
Disproportionate share revenue
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) grants
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Payroll, employee benefits and contract labor
Professional fees
Purchased services
Supplies
Other operating expenses
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) grant expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income before pension amortization
component
Pension expense, amortization component

489,931
71,500
23,966
31,149
616,546

2015

$

314,761
74,380
42,680
78,363
24,430
23,062
28,673
586,349

297,397
70,260
43,959
74,063
26,250
4,059
27,929
543,917

30,197

9,157
-

20,040

Operating income
Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Investment income
Contributions to component unit
Interest expense
Total net non-operating expenses
Net income
Transfer to Erie County
Capital contributions
Total change in net position
Net position – beginning of year

10,157

9,157

773
(955)
(8,006)
(8,188)

2,931
(1,081)
(8,240)
(6,390)

1,969

2,767

(3,356)
-

575

(1,387)

3,342

119,890

Net position – end of year

$

See notes to the financial statements.
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467,748
59,237
4,499
21,590
553,074

118,503

116,548
$

119,890

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
2015

2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from patients and third party payors
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits
Payments to vendors for supplies and other
Other receipts
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

480,657
(328,140)
(263,781)
118,011
6,747

$

443,954
(274,221)
(199,252)
92,694
63,175

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Settlements with Erie County
Payments from Erie County
Transfer to Erie County
Transfers to component unit
Net cash used in non-capital financing activities

(9,258)
2,000
(3,356)
(955)
(11,569)

(9,120)
2,000
(1,081)
(8,201)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets
Capital contributions
Borrowings on long-term debt
Payments on long term debt
Interest paid on long term debt
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

(9,861)
8,100
(10,619)
(8,006)
(20,386)

(14,309)
575
10,000
(8,214)
(8,240)
(20,188)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sales (purchases) of assets whose use is limited, net
Investment income
Purchases of investments, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

18,625
773
(8,483)
10,915

(6,225)
2,931
(8,061)
(11,355)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(14,293)

23,431

29,682

6,251

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning
Ending

$

Noncash capital and related financing activities:
Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $1,423
and $4,435, respectively, of invoices related to capital asset acquisitions
(Continued)
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15,389

$

29,682

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
2015

2016
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debt
Patient accounts receivable
Other receivables
Supplies, prepaids and other
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Self-insured obligations
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of pension resources
Net cash provided by operating activities
See notes to the financial statements.
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$

10,157

$

28,673
10,590
(10,129)
(12,082)
(7,159)
(120,624)
(11,227)
(1,023)
(8,604)
2,347
17,453
91,894
16,481
6,747

$

9,157

$

27,929
10,565
(26,909)
10,283
(3,680)
24,557
6,140
12,213
7,368
(17,733)
7,304
(8,141)
4,122
63,175

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Net Position - Discretely Presented Component Units
December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
The
Grider
Initiative, Inc.

ECMC
Foundation, Inc.
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Assets whose use is limited
Other receivables
Supplies, prepaids and other
Total current assets

$

Other receivables
Endowment and other investments
Equipment and vehicles, net

Total assets
Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Funds held in custody for others
Total current liabilities

$

1,045
58
269
1,372
5,915

$

$

861
324
1,185

$

Total liabilities
Net Position
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position
$

275
955
1,230

11,865

-

650
28
678

955
955

1,863

955

50
3,607
395
4,052

10,000
910
10,910

5,915

$

10,635
10,635

$

Related party
Interest payable

Total liabilities and net position

602
644
1,418
1,856
23
4,543

2016
Research for
Health in
Total
Erie County, Inc. (memorandum only)

$

11,865

67
985
1,052

$

$

ECMC
Foundation, Inc.

$

644
689
898
1,251
43
3,525

$

1,311
58
318
1,687

1,045
10,693
269
12,007
$

18,832

$

5,212

$

3

$

864
324
1,188

$

481
344
825

$

3
-

283
1,080
1,363

2015
Research for
Health in
Total
Erie County, Inc. (memorandum only)

$

10,567
10,567

1,052

$

$

944
1,629
1,418
2,811
23
6,825

The
Grider
Initiative, Inc.

11,930

-

2
1,042
1,044

$

$

929
1,731
898
2,331
43
5,932
1,311
10,625
318
12,254

1,044

$

18,186

5

$

486
344
830

$
-

5

1,605
28
1,633

650
17
667

1,088
1,088

3

2,821

1,492

1,088

5

2,585

1,049
1,049

10,050
3,607
2,354
16,011

50
3,047
623
3,720

10,000
842
10,842

1,039
1,039

10,050
3,047
2,504
15,601

1,052

See notes to the financial statements.
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$

18,832

$

5,212

$

11,930

-

$

1,738
17
1,755

1,044

$

18,186

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Discretely Presented Component Units
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)
The
Grider
Initiative, Inc.

ECMC
Foundation, Inc.
Operating revenues:
Grants, contributions and special events
Other operating revenue, net
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Program services and grants
Fundraising
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses

3,309
9
3,318

$

752
1,281
992
3,025

-

2016
Research for
Health in
Total
Erie County, Inc. (memorandum only)
$

-

$

3,309
9
3,318

955
955

28
5
33

293

(955)

(33)

(695)

Non-operating revenue:
Contributions from related party
Investment income

39

955
68

43

Change in net position

332

68

3,720

10,842

Operating income (loss)

Net position – beginning of year
Net position – end of year

$

4,052

$

10,910

$

17

$

2,617
13
2,630

$

1,221
597
675
2,493

-

2015
Research for
Health in
Total
Erie County, Inc. (memorandum only)
$

-

$

2,617
13
2,630

1,081
8
1,089

19
3
22

137

(1,089)

(22)

(974)

955
150

10

1,081
(27)

4

1,081
(13)

10

410

147

(35)

1,039

15,601

3,573

1,049

See notes to the financial statements.

ECMC
Foundation, Inc.

The
Grider
Initiative, Inc.

1,735
1,281
997
4,013

$

16,011

$

3,720

(18)

10,877
$

10,842

2,321
597
686
3,604

94

1,057
$

1,039

15,507
$

15,601

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 1.

Organization

The Corporation: Erie County Medical Center Corporation (referred to as the “Corporation” or “ECMCC”)
is a public benefit corporation created by the Erie County Medical Center Corporation Act, Chapter 143 of
the Laws of New York State, 2003 (Title 6 of Article 10-C of the Public Authorities Law) (the “Act”) as
amended in 2016. The Corporation was created under the Act to secure a form of governance which
permits the Corporation to have the legal, financial, and managerial flexibility to operate its health care
facilities for the benefit of the residents of New York State (the “State”), the County of Erie (the “County”),
and Western New York, including persons in need who lack the ability to pay.
The Corporation’s “Health Care Facilities” consist of the Medical Center, a 602-bed acute tertiary care
facility providing inpatient, emergency, outpatient, primary care and specialty clinic services (Medical
Center), a 390-bed residential health care facility (Terrace View) both located on Grider Street in the City
of Buffalo and three chemical dependency and alcohol rehabilitation clinics located throughout the
County. The Corporation serves as the region’s only Level 1 adult trauma center, burn center,
comprehensive traumatic brain injury and spinal cord injury rehabilitative center, Comprehensive
Psychiatric Emergency Program provider for acute psychiatric emergencies, Regional Center of
Excellence for Transplantation and Kidney Care, and is the primary provider of HIV inpatient and
outpatient specialty care.
The Corporation has the power under the Act to acquire, operate, and manage its facilities and to issue
bonds and notes to finance the costs of providing such facilities. The Act specifically provides that the
Corporation’s existence shall continue until terminated by law; provided, however, that no such
termination shall take effect so long as the Corporation shall have bonds or other obligations outstanding
unless adequate provision has been made for the payment or satisfaction thereof. The Corporation’s
primary purpose is the operation of the Medical Center and Terrace View, and its powers, duties, and
functions are as set forth in the Act, as amended, and other applicable laws.
The Corporation qualifies as a governmental entity and, accordingly, is exempt from federal income tax
pursuant to Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, as amended, the Corporation’s financial statements are included, as a discretely
presented component unit, in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of
the CAFR can be obtained from the Erie County Comptroller’s Office, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1100,
Buffalo, New York, 14202. The Corporation is subject to New York civil service law.
Governance: The Corporation is governed by its Board of Directors (the “Board”) consisting of fifteen
(15) voting directors, eight (8) of whom are appointed by the Governor of the State of New York and
seven (7) of whom are appointed by the Erie County Executive with the advice and consent of the Erie
County Legislature. There are four appointed non-voting representatives, as well. The directors and nonvoting members serve staggered five (5) year terms and continue to hold office until their successors are
appointed. Directors have experience in the fields of health care services, quality and patient safety,
human resources, strategic growth, law, and financial management and reflect a broad representation of
the community served by the Corporation. Regular meetings of the Board are scheduled eleven (11)
times per year. Corporation officers are appointed by the Board.
Great Lakes Heath System: The Corporation is a member of Great Lakes Health System of Western
New York (Great Lakes). Great Lakes is a not-for-profit, community-based corporation comprised of
unified partners whose objective is to provide the highest quality of healthcare to the residents of Western
New York. Great Lakes is comprised of the Corporation, Kaleida Health including four hospitals as well as
a long term care facility, ambulatory health and community based clinics, and the State University of New
York at Buffalo (the “University”).
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 1.

Organization (Continued)

Medical School Collaboration: The Corporation serves as a primary teaching hospital for the University
School of Medicine and Biomedical Sciences (the “Medical School”). An agreement governs the
relationship between the Corporation and the Medical School. The Corporation serves as an integral part
of the education and research mission of the University by providing the clinical settings for the
University’s public mission to educate and train physicians, nurses and other healthcare professionals,
conduct clinical research programs and deliver healthcare services to patients. There are currently 169
full-time equivalent residents assigned to the Corporation in various Academic College of Graduate
Medical Education accredited residency programs.
Component Units: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
require the inclusion within the Corporation’s financial statements of certain organizations as component
units. The component units discussed below are included because the nature and significance of their
relationship to the Corporation are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete under criteria set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).
The component unit information in the accompanying basic financial statements includes the financial
data of the Corporation’s three discretely presented component units. These component units are
discussed in more detail below:
ECMC Foundation, Inc.: The ECMC Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), formerly the ECMC Lifeline
Foundation, Inc., is a nonprofit organization exempt from federal income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The Foundation was formed for the purpose of
supporting Corporation programs. The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on
an accrual basis. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing to: Executive Director, ECMC
Foundation, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.
The Grider Initiative, Inc.: The Grider Initiative, Inc. (the “Physician Endowment”) is a nonprofit
organization exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. The Physician
Endowment was funded in 2010, for the purpose of recruiting physicians who shall practice on the
Grider Street campus of the Corporation. The entity was funded with an initial transfer of $10,000
from the Corporation. Earnings from the investment of the initial transfer may be used only for
physician recruitment and retention and necessary expenses of the entity. The financial statements of
The Grider Initiative, Inc. have been prepared on an accrual basis. The annual financial report can be
obtained by writing to: Chair, The Grider Initiative, Inc. 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.
Research for Health in Erie County, Inc.: Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. (RHEC) is a
nonprofit organization dedicated to support research activities relating to the causes, nature, and
treatment of diseases, disorders, and defects of particular importance to the public health in areas
served by the Corporation. RHEC’s revenue comes primarily from investment income. RHEC is
exempt from income tax as a not-for-profit corporation under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is
incorporated under the laws of the State of New York. The entity has not received funding in recent
years. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing to: Grant Administration, Research for
Health in Erie County, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 1.

Organization (Continued)

In addition, the financial statements of the Corporation include the operations of the following component
units, which are blended with the accounts of the Corporation:
PPC Strategic Services LLC (PPC): The Corporation is the sole owner of this enterprise, which was
established to enable the Corporation to enter into various other business relationships. The entity
was formed as a management support organization (MSO) to provide various support services to the
Corporation and Preferred Physician Care, P.C. These services include providing employees,
management and administrative services, and facilities management.
Grider Support Services, LLC: The Corporation is the sole owner of this enterprise, which was
formed to act as an MSO for oncology and physician services.
Grider Community Gardens, LLC: This entity is wholly-owned and controlled by the Corporation
and was formed for the purpose of purchasing and holding properties in proximity to the Corporation’s
Grider Street Campus.
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The Corporation uses the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized in
the period it is earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred. Under this basis of
accounting, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
associated with the operation of the Corporation are included in the statements of net position.
For financial accounting and reporting purposes, the Corporation follows all pronouncements of the
GASB. All references to relevant authoritative literature issued by the GASB with which the Corporation
must comply are hereinafter referred to generally as “U.S. GAAP.” The discretely presented component
units, as previously described, report under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards. As
such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features.
Use of estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The
reserve for uncollectible accounts, contractual allowances, amounts payable to third-party payors,
workers compensation, malpractice reserves, pension obligations, self-insured obligations, as well as
Disproportionate Share (DSH) revenue and certain other accounts, require the significant use of
estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Included in net patient service revenue are adjustments to prior year estimated third-party payor
settlements, and estimated receivables and payables that were originally recorded in the period the
related services were rendered. These adjustments are made in the normal course of operations and
amounts reported are consistent with approach in prior years. The adjustments to prior year estimates
and other third-party reimbursement receipts or recoveries that relate to prior years also impact
Disproportionate Share revenues as discussed in Note 4. The combined effect of changes related to
prior years estimates resulted in an increase of $1,827 and $2,539 in total operating revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. During 2015, ECMCC recorded the Universal
Settlement with New York State of $1,789. A liability of $2,961 was also settled as part of this transaction.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents: The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
cash in checking and money market accounts as well as investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated for long-term purposes or received with
donor-imposed restrictions limiting their use to long-term purposes are not considered cash and cash
equivalents for purposes of the statements of cash flows. Monies deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insured commercial banks are collateralized with specifically designated securities held by a
pledging financial institution, as required by State regulations.
Patient accounts receivable: Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated
allowance for contractual adjustments and an estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts. The
contractual allowance represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated
reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and other third party payor programs. Current operations are
charged with an estimated provision for bad debts estimated based on the age of the account, prior
experience and any other circumstances which affect collectability. The Corporation’s policy does not
require collateral or other security for patient accounts receivable and the Corporation routinely accepts
assignment of, or is otherwise entitled to receive, patient benefits payable under health insurance
programs, plans or policies. The allowance for estimated doubtful accounts at December 31, 2016 and
2015 was approximately $18,962 and $17,133, respectively.
Investments and assets whose use is limited: The Corporation generally records its investments at fair
value. Such assets are comprised of cash and cash equivalents, including money market funds, fixed
income securities, commercial paper and equity funds. Assets classified as investments are unrestricted.
Assets classified as limited as to use are restricted under Board designation or terms of agreements with
third parties and include debt service funds, funds for self-insured workers compensation costs and
medical malpractice costs, collateral for insured workers compensation programs, patient and resident
monies, funding for future retiree health costs, and funds limited as to use for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment. Also included at December 31, 2015 was $23,617 of securities guaranteed by
Governmental National Mortgage Association and insured by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) related to an investment in Kaleida Health’s Gates Vascular Institute located on the
Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus. Kaleida Health, HUD and the owners of the securities restructured the
transaction during 2016 and the securities held by the Corporation were redeemed. Proceeds from this
redemption were $18,595.
Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to
changes in the fair value of investment securities, it is at least possible that changes in risks in the near
term could materially affect the net position of ECMCC.
Other receivables: The composition of other receivables, as of December 31, is as follows:
2016
Medicaid Disproportionate Share (DSH) and Upper Payment Limit (UPL)
Care Restructuring Enhancement Pilot (CREPS) Program Grant
Other

$

$
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42,160
20,040
6,782
68,982

2015
$

$

47,675
9,225
56,900

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital assets: Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed under the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Estimated useful lives of assets have been established
as follows:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Fixed equipment
Movable equipment

5 – 25 years
10 – 40 years
10 – 20 years
3 – 20 years

When assets are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected for the period. Amortization of
capital leases is computed using the straight-line method over the lease term or the estimated useful life
of the asset, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred with
significant renewals and betterments being capitalized. During periods of construction the Corporation
capitalizes interest incurred with borrowings for construction.
Capital assets that are donated (without restriction) are recorded at their fair market values as a direct
increase to the component of net investment in capital assets.
Deferred outflows of resources: Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense) until that time. Deferred outflows of resources consist primarily of unrecognized items not yet
charged to pension expense related to the net pension liability.
Deferred inflows of resources: Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. Deferred inflows of resources consist primarily of the unamortized portion of certain items
related to the Corporation’s pension.
Other assets: Amounts due from the County, as noted in Note 13, as well as ownership interests in
various business enterprises are included in other assets. Collaborative Care Ventures, LLC
(Collaborative Care) was formed in 2014 by ECMCC and Kaleida Health System (KHS). Collaborative
Care was created as a vehicle for ECMCC and KHS to participate in various investments in the future
consistent with their missions. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Corporation’s share of the net assets
of Collaborative Care amounted to $7,047 and $7,144, respectively.
Unearned revenue: Unearned revenue represents funds received by the Corporation for the DSRIP
Program for expenses not yet incurred.
Compensated absences: The Corporation has accrued liabilities for certain compensated absences
earned by its employees, to include vacation, sick, and compensatory time. The Corporation’s employees
are permitted to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave time up to certain maximum limits. The
Corporation accrues the estimated obligation related to vacation pay based on pay rates currently in
effect. Sick leave credits, if accumulated above certain prescribed levels, may be the basis of a
supplemental payment to employees upon retirement. The Corporation accrues an estimated liability for
these estimated terminal payments. These amounts have been included in the statements of net position
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, within the caption accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits in the
amount of $11,004 and $11,545, respectively.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net position: Net position is classified into three categories according to external donor restrictions or
availability of assets for satisfaction of the Corporation’s obligations. The Corporation’s net position is
described as follows:
Net investment in capital assets: This represents the Corporation’s total investment in capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts
are not included as a component of net investment in capital assets.
Restricted: The restricted expendable component of net position consists of constraints placed on
net position through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The restricted nonexpendable component of
net position is permanently unavailable for use. The earnings on the nonexpendable net position are
classified as restricted expendable.
Unrestricted: This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the
definition of other components of net position described above. These resources are used for
transactions relating to the general health care operations of the Corporation, and may be used at the
discretion of the Board of Directors to meet current expenses for any purpose.
Net patient service revenue: Net patient service revenue is reported as services are rendered at
estimated net realizable amounts, including estimated retroactive revenue adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third party payors. Estimated settlements under third party
reimbursement agreements are accrued in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in
future periods as final settlements are determined. An estimated provision for bad debts is included in net
patient service revenue.
Charity care: The Corporation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care
policy, without charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Corporation does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient
service revenue in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
The estimated costs of caring for charity care patients were $10,244 and $12,255 for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Additionally, the Corporation provided approximately $3,476
and $2,890 in discounts to self-pay patients for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
Contributions: The Foundation reports gifts of cash or promises to give as restricted contributions when
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When the intent of the
donor is that the assets are to remain in perpetuity and the Foundation does not have the right to invade
the original principal, the assets are reported as permanently restricted. When a donor restriction expires,
restricted - expendable net positions are released to unrestricted net position and reported in the
statements of activities as net position released from restrictions.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Classification of revenues: The Corporation has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to the following criteria:
Operating revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange
transactions, such as payments for providing services and payments for goods and services received,
for health care services provided to patients, net of contractual allowances and provisions for bad
debts.
Non-operating revenues: Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
nonexchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, income from investments and
contributions.
Income taxes: The Corporation is a Public Benefit Corporation of the State of New York and is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements.
Contributed services: RHEC receives contributions from the Corporation consisting primarily of donated
space, equipment, and personnel support. During 2016 and 2015, the value of contributed services
meeting the requirements for recognition in the financial statements was not material and has not been
recorded.
Certain immaterial amounts related to contributed rents have been reflected in the Foundation’s financial
statements as contributed services. The Foundation generally pays for services requiring specific
expertise. However, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the
Foundation in meeting its goals and objectives. Such services are not recognized in the Foundation
financial statements.
No amounts have been reflected in the Physician Endowment financial statements for contributed
services, as the value of contributed services meeting the requirements for recognition in the financial
statements was not material.
Recent and pending accounting pronouncements: In February 2015, GASB issued Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement addresses accounting and financial
reporting issues related to fair value measurements, including but not limited to, proving guidance for
determining fair value measurements for financial reporting purposes and applying fair value to certain
investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. This Statement was effective for the
year ended December 31, 2016 and the reporting and disclosure requirements are reflected in Note 5.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The objective of this Statement is to establish requirements
for those pension and pension plans that are not administered through a trust meeting specified criteria.
This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The Corporation has not yet
determined the impact this Statement will have on the financial statements.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB). This Statement is effective for years beginning after June 15,
2017. The Corporation has not yet determined the impact this Statement will have on the financial
statements, however, expects the impact to be material.
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Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 67, 68 and 73. The objective of this Statement is to address issues regarding (1) the presentation of
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016. The Corporation has not yet determined the impact this statement will
have on the financial statements.
In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Capital Asset Retirement Obligations. The objective
of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations.
An asset retirement obligation is defined as a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of
a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement
activities related to tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this
Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2018. The Corporation has not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is
to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities and the focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether the government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship
exists. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018. The Corporation has not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the
financial statements.
Subsequent events: The Corporation has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or
disclosure through March 22, 2017, the date the financial statements were issued.
Note 3.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payment to the Corporation at
amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major thirdparty payors is as follows:
Medicare: Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per discharge for acute care services and per patient day for inpatient
behavioral health services. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based
on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Certain inpatient and outpatient services, as well as defined
organ acquisition, capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid
based on regulatory proscribed formulae. The Corporation is reimbursed for such items at a tentative
rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the Corporation and
audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Corporation’s classification of patients under
the Medicare program and the appropriateness of their admission are subject to an independent
review by a peer review organization under contract with the Corporation. Most outpatient
reimbursements are based on an Ambulatory Payment Classification weighting by acuity system,
although some outpatient cost reimbursement still exists.
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Note 3.

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Medicaid: Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed at
prospectively determined rates in accordance with Part 86 of the New York Codes, Rules and
Regulations and New York State Law which are promulgated by the New York State Department of
Health (DOH). Outpatient services are similarly paid at either prospective rates or fee schedule
amounts.
Terrace View provides services to residents under agreements with third-party payors (Medicaid,
Medicare and HMO’s) under provisions of their respective cost reimbursement formulas or contractually
negotiated rates. If amounts received are less than established billing rates, the difference is accounted
for as a reduction of revenue. Final determination of the reimbursement rates are subject to review by
appropriate third-party payors. Provisions are made in the financial statements for anticipated
adjustments that may result from such reviews. Difference between the estimated amounts accrued and
final settlements are reported in operations in the year of settlement.
Net patient service revenue, as reported on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position is comprised of the following for the years ended December 31:

ECMC
Gross charges
Less
Discounts and allowances
Provision for bad debts

$

921,658

$

470,793
9,030
441,835

ECMC
Gross charges
Less
Discounts and allowances
Provision for bad debts

$

887,624

$

461,200
9,005
417,419
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2016
Terrace View
$

89,792

$

40,136
1,560
48,096

Total
$

1,011,450

$

510,929
10,590
489,931

2015
Terrace View
$

89,992

$

38,103
1,560
50,329

Total
$

977,616

$

499,303
10,565
467,748
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Note 3.

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Net patient service revenue by payor for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

ECMC
Medicare*
Medicaid*
Other third party payors
Self-pay

$

148,849
160,698
129,742
2,546
441,835

$

ECMC
Medicare*
Medicaid*
Other third party payors
Self-pay

$

144,954
159,709
108,931
3,825
417,419

$

2016
Terrace View
$

$

7,063
37,262
1,264
2,507
48,096

Total
$

$

2015
Terrace View
$

$

6,981
40,849
1,043
1,456
50,329

155,912
197,960
131,006
5,053
489,931

Total
$

$

151,935
200,558
109,974
5,281
467,748

%
31.8%
40.4%
26.8%
1.0%
100.0%

%
32.5%
42.9%
23.5%
1.1%
100.0%

*Medicare and Medicaid include Managed Care plans
Laws and regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and other third-party payor programs are extremely
complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates could change by a material amount in future periods. The Corporation believes that it is in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. Compliance with such laws and regulations
can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action
including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.
Under the New York Health Care Reform Act, the Corporation also enters into payment agreements with
certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Corporation under these agreements includes prospectively
determined rates, discounts from charges, and prospectively determined per diem rates. Medicaid,
Workers’ Compensation and No-fault continue to have reimbursement rates determined based on New
York’s Prospective Reimbursement Methodology.
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Note 3.

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Patient accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31:

ECMC
Gross accounts receivable
Less
Discounts and allowances
Provision for bad debts

$

121,255

$

46,685
14,976
59,594

ECMC
Gross accounts receivable
Less
Discounts and allowances
Provision for bad debts

$

120,166

$

45,372
13,619
61,175

2016
Terrace View
$

14,275

$

2,509
3,986
7,780

Total
$

135,530

$

49,194
18,962
67,374

2015
Terrace View
$

12,683

$

2,509
3,514
6,660

Total
$

132,849

$

47,881
17,133
67,835

Concentration of credit risk: The Corporation grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of
whom are insured under third-party payor arrangements. The mix of net receivables from patients and
third-party payors at December 31 is as follows:
2016
Medicare
Medicaid
Commercial insurance and HMO’s
No-fault
Self-pay
Other
Total

25.8%
28.1%
24.3%
9.3%
5.9%
6.6%
100.0%
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2015
29.7%
28.5%
23.3%
8.1%
2.4%
8.0%
100.0%
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Note 4.

Disproportionate Share Revenue

The Medicaid DSH program is designed to provide Federal funds to certain hospitals to help offset the
cost of uncompensated care provided to the uninsured. Each state has a specified Federal DSH
allotment. In addition, New York State law authorizes the DOH to make supplemental DSH medical
assistance payments to public hospitals located in Erie County, Nassau County, and Westchester
County. For long term care facilities, DSH revenue is recognized in accordance with Upper Payment Limit
(UPL) regulations promulgated by CMS.
In 2016 and 2015, DSH funding recorded by the Corporation totaled $71,500 and $59,237, respectively.
The DSH funding process is complex and includes both tentative and final settlements for various state
fiscal years which are subject to the availability of state and federal funding among other factors. As a
result, DSH revenue is estimated and final settlements may vary significantly from the initial estimates.
For hospital services, DSH revenue of $50,327 and $42,503 was recognized in 2016 and 2015,
respectively. In addition during 2016 and 2015, the Corporation recognized $21,173 and $16,734,
respectively, of UPL revenue for Terrace View and the existing hospital-based skilled nursing unit which
was assimilated into Terrace View. The UPL for New York State fiscal years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017,
for public nursing homes has not yet been finalized. As a result, UPL revenue for the long term care units
are estimates based on historical experience.
In addition, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has indicated that cost reports dating
back to the 2014 reporting year and the methodology employed to calculate DSH revenue are subject to
audit. At this time, the impact of the CMS audit activity on the Corporation’s DSH revenue is not certain.
Management has taken what it believes to be reasonable and appropriate steps to assure compliance
with the CMS methodology.
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Note 5.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Assets Whose use is Limited

Cash and cash equivalents and investments: The Corporation’s investments are made in accordance
with State regulations and its own investment policy. The investment policy is regularly reviewed by an
investment committee of the Board which evaluates the performance of investment managers and
monitors compliance with the investment policy.
The Corporation’s investments are generally reported at fair value, as discussed in Note 2. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, investments and assets whose use is limited are included in the
Corporation’s Statements of Net Position as follows:
2016
2015
Cash and cash equivalents

$

15,389

$

29,682

Investments

19,814

11,331

Assets whose use is limited – current

23,849

37,179

Assets whose use is limited – non-current

82,448

87,743

$

141,500

$

165,935

$

360

$

428

Current Portion of Assets Whose use is Limited
Patient and residents trust cash
Restricted for debt service
Equipment funds

(a)

(b)

Designated for self-insurance obligations
Designated for retiree health obligations
Designated for DSRIP program

(c)

(c)

(c)

NYS voluntary defined contribution plan escrow
Total current portion of assets whose use is limited

2,811

2,807

1,261

6,636

4,408

4,413

9,737

9,109

5,087

13,691

185
$

95

23,849

$

9,253

$

37,179

Noncurrent Portion of Assets Whose use is Limited
Restricted for debt service

(a)

Designated for long-term investment

$
(c)

Designated for retiree health obligations

(c)

Designated for self-insurance obligations

(c)
(d)

Restricted – insured workers compensation collateral
Total noncurrent portion of assets whose use is limited
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Funds restricted by operation of indenture agreement
Unspent loan proceeds for equipment
Funds internally designated by operation of board authority
Funds restricted – insured workers compensation collateral agreement
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23,617

15,094

15,722

20,309

20,167

19,198
$

9,123

18,594

82,448

19,114
$

87,743
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Note 5.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Assets Whose use is Limited (Continued)

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents as well as investments are exposed to various risks,
including credit, custodial credit, interest rate, and market risks, as discussed in more detail below:
Deposits
All monies are deposited with banks or trust companies designated by the Corporation’s investment
committee of the Board of Directors. Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in
interest or non-interest bearing accounts or invested in various marketable securities and bonds.
Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the Corporation’s
deposits might not be recovered. FDIC insurance through December 31, 2016 for funds held in interest
bearing accounts is $250 per depositor per category of legal ownership. New York law requires that
deposits in excess of FDIC insured amounts are collateralized. The Corporation’s bank deposits at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, totaled $25,749 and $36,846, respectively. $941 and $972 of the deposits
were insured at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Amounts over FDIC insured limits were fully
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution.
Investments
The Corporation’s investment policy authorizes the Corporation to invest in accordance with New York
State Finance Law Section 8(14), Section 201 and Public Authorities Law Article 9 Section 2800 to 2985.
Compliance with the policy is monitored by the Corporation’s investment committee and reported on
quarterly by the Corporation’s investment advisor.
Credit risk: Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation, causing the Corporation to experience a loss of principal. The Corporation’s investment policy
limits investments in equity and fixed income securities with ratings only in the highest category.
ECMCC’s investments in government bonds carry the explicit guarantee of the U.S. government. The
corporate bonds, short-term fixed income and government bonds are all rated AA+ or better by the
Standards & Poor’s rating agency.
Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Corporation’s cash equivalent securities are limited to maturities of no
greater than eighteen months; short-term fixed income securities are limited to maturities of no greater
than five years; and long-term fixed income securities are limited to maturities to no more than ten years.
Substantially all of the Corporation’s investments and assets whose use is limited have stated maturities
of less than one year.
Custodial credit risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the Corporation will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Corporation’s investment policy does not
address custodial credit risk.
Concentration of credit risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude
of investments in any single issuer. The Corporation’s investment policy indicates the combined holdings
of securities from one issuer shall not constitute more than 5.0% of the fund except for issues guaranteed
directly or indirectly by the U.S. Government. The Corporation had no holdings in Federal National
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) issues in 2016 (6.0% in 2015). At December 31, 2016 holdings were
6.3% (5.4% in 2015), in Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) issues.
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Note 5.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Assets Whose use is Limited (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments: The Corporation has adopted GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application. This guidance requires entities to expand their fair value disclosures by determining
major categories of debt and equity securities within the fair value hierarchy on the basis of the nature
and risk of the investment. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Management utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs (Levels 1 and 2)
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (Level 3) within the fair value hierarchy established by
GASB. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value are required to be classified and disclosed in one of the
following three categories:
Level 1:

Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the Corporation
has the ability to access.

Level 2:

Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for similar assets, quoted prices in
markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, directly or
indirectly.

Level 3:

Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement. These are generally company generated inputs and are not market-based
inputs. The Corporation has no Level 3 assets.
2016
Level 1

Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments and assets whose use is limited:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities:
Mid-cap core equities
Mid-cap value equities
Value equities
Growth equities
Global core equities
Short-term fixed income
Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Total investments
$
Total

15,389

Level 2
$

58,095
1,728
1,682
1,838
9,235
3,450
76,028
91,417
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Level 3
-

$

-

$

33,785
7,407
8,891
50,083
50,083

$

Total
-

$

15,389

-

58,095

-

1,728
1,682
1,838
9,235
3,450
33,785
7,407
8,891
126,111
141,500

$
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Note 5.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Assets Whose use is Limited (Continued)
2015
Level 1

Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments and assets whose use is limited:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities:
Mid-cap core equities
Mid-cap value equities
Value equities
Growth equities
Global core equities
Short-term fixed income
Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Total investments
$
Total

Note 6.

29,682

Level 2
$

-

39,031
1,588
1,455
1,580
8,515
3,227
55,396
85,078

Level 3
$

-

$

33,381
6,948
40,528
80,857
80,857

$

Total
-

$

29,682

-

39,031

-

1,588
1,455
1,580
8,515
3,227
33,381
6,948
40,528
136,253
165,935

$

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31 is as follows:
2016
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets – being depreciated
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Fixed/major moveable equipment

$

Total capital assets –
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets –
being depreciated, net
Capital assets – not being depreciated
Construction in progress
Idle property, net
Total capital assets, net

$

20,020
414,180
146,433

Disposals/
Transfers

Additions
$

269
6,623
5,762

$

(124)
(5)

Ending
Balance
$

20,289
420,679
152,190

580,633

12,654

(129)

593,158

(308,742)

(28,468)

-

(337,210)

271,891

(15,814)

(129)

255,948

4,565
3,356
279,812

5,124
(10,690)

(6,060)
(3,356)
(9,545)

3,629
259,577
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Note 6.

Capital Assets (Continued)
2015
Beginning
Balance

Capital assets – being depreciated
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Fixed/major moveable equipment

$

Total capital assets –
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets –
being depreciated, net
Capital assets – not being depreciated
Construction in progress
Idle property, net
Total capital assets, net

$

16,827
401,855
136,272

Disposals/
Transfers

Additions
$

114
15,613
9,952

$

3,079
(3,288)
209

Ending
Balance
$

20,020
414,180
146,433

554,954

25,679

-

580,633

(280,973)

(27,769)

-

(308,742)

273,981

(2,090)

-

271,891

11,660
3,356
288,997

11,276
9,186

$

$

(18,371)
(18,371)

$

4,565
3,356
279,812

Construction in progress at December 31, 2016 and 2015 includes costs associated with the planning
and design of the emergency department expansion project, as well as construction and remodeling costs
for the pathology clinic and ground floor renovations.
With the opening of the new long-term care facility in February 2013, the Corporation discontinued
depreciation on the building and disposed of equipment for the facility referred to as the Erie County
Home. As a result, the building was reclassed to idle property. The Corporation transferred title to these
assets effective March 2016 to Erie County as stipulated in the 2009 settlement agreement (Note 13).
Depreciation expense amounted to $28,468 and $27,769 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
Note 7.

Accrued Other Liabilities

The composition of accrued other liabilities as of December 31 is as follows:
2016
Due to Erie County
Workers compensation claims
Due to discretely presented component units
Medical malpractice claims
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB)
Interest costs
Other
Total

$

$

34

7,912
3,247
2,121
1,161
9,737
809
5,216
30,203

2015
$

$

16,550
3,171
2,629
1,242
9,109
814
5,983
39,498
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Note 8.

Indebtedness

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:
2016
Beginning
Balance

Erie County - Guaranteed Senior Revenue
Bonds, Series 2004

$

Erie County – 2011 loan payable

$

80,812

Key Bank loan

$

9,923
176,502

$

(2,860)

-

-

$

8,100

$

(5,001)

8,100

977

Capital lease obligation - 2015

-

Ending
Balance

Payments

-

-

Capital lease obligation - 2014

Total debt

84,790

Additions

(643)

$

(2,115)
(10,619)

$

Due Within
One Year

81,930

$

3,020

75,811

5,191

8,100

8,100

334

334

7,808
173,983

$

2,166
18,811

2015
Beginning
Balance

Erie County - Guaranteed Senior Revenue
Bonds, Series 2004

$

Erie County – 2011 loan payable
Capital lease obligation - 2014
Capital lease obligation - 2015
Total debt

$

87,500

Additions
$

-

Ending
Balance

Payments
$

(2,710)

$

Due Within
One Year

84,790

$

2,860

85,629

-

(4,817)

80,812

5,001

1,587

-

(610)

977

643

174,716

$

10,000
10,000

$

(77)
(8,214)

$

9,923
176,502

$

2,115
10,619

Future annual principal payments applicable to long term debt for the years subsequent to December 31,
2016 are as follows:
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2034
Total

$

$

18,811
10,791
11,223
10,506
9,768
55,789
43,045
14,050
173,983

The Series 2004 Bonds are secured by a pledge of the gross receipts of the Corporation and amounts on
deposit in certain debt service reserve funds. Interest rates on the bonds range from 5.5% to 5.7% at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, with principal payments ranging from $3,020 to $7,220 due
annually on November 1 with interest payments due semi-annually on May 1 and November 1.

35

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
Note 8.

Indebtedness (Continued)

Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, the County has unconditionally guaranteed to the Corporation, the
punctual payment of the principal, interest, and redemption premium, if any, on the Series 2004 Bonds,
as the same shall become due and payable, and has pledged the faith and credit of the County for the
performance of such guaranty. A municipal bond insurance policy has been purchased by the
Corporation to guarantee all debt service payments in case of default by the Corporation and the County.
In 2011, the Corporation entered into a loan agreement with the County of Erie, with the assistance of the
Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, to borrow $96,864, the proceeds of which were primarily used to
finance construction of a new residential health care facility and related infrastructure on the Grider Street
campus. The facility opened in February 2013.
The loan agreement with the County includes sinking fund requirements if certain covenants are not met
by the Corporation. The Corporation met these requirements as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and,
accordingly, no sinking funds have been established. The loan payable has a final maturity of October 1,
2028. Principal and interest (rate at 3.7% at December 31, 2016 and 2015) of $662 are due monthly.
During 2016, the Corporation signed a business loan agreement with Key Bank. Interest is payable
monthly at the 1-month LIBOR rate, plus 2.25% (3.75% at December 31, 2016). Principal and all accrued
interest is due July 2017.
During 2014, the Corporation entered into a capital lease agreement in the amount of $1,698, the
proceeds of which were used to rent a speech recognition and transcription system. The agreement
requires principal and interest payments (cost of capital is estimated at 5.3%) of $56 and matures June
2017.
During 2015, the Corporation entered into a capital lease agreement in the amount of $10,000, the
proceeds of which were used to purchase various equipment. The agreement requires principal and
interest payments (cost of capital is estimated at 2.3%) of $194 and matures June 2020. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, $1,261 and $6,636, respectively, of the proceeds remained unspent and
are held in escrow.
Note 9.

Pension Plan

Retirement plan: The Corporation participates in the New York State and Local Retirement System
(“NYSLRS” or the “System”), which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employees' retirement
system. There are more than 440,000 pensioners and beneficiaries in the System with nearly 1.1 billion
participants.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
NYSLRS and additions to/deductions from NYSLRS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by NYSLRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The
net pension liability is measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be
provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those
employees’ past periods of service (total pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position. The net pension liability should be measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier
than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.
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Pension Plan (Continued)

Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the
New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). As set forth in the RSSL, the Comptroller of
the State of New York (the “Comptroller”) serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the System.
The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations for the administration and transaction
of the business of the System and for custody and control of its funds. The System issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, Gov. Alfred E.
Smith State Office Building, Albany, NY 12244.
NYSLRS provides three main types of retirement benefits: service retirements, ordinary disability
retirements (non job-related disabilities), and accident disability retirements (job-related disabilities) to
members who are in different "Tiers." The members' Tier is determined by the date of membership.
Subject to certain conditions, members generally become fully vested as to benefits upon the completion
of 5 or 10 years of service depending on their Tier. Employees may be required to contribute a
percentage of their salary to the pension plan based on their Tier, determined by their date of
membership in the plan. Annual pension benefits can be calculated as a percentage of final average
salary times number of years of service and changes with the number of years of membership within the
plan.
At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Corporation reported a liability of $116,006 and $24,112,
respectively, for its proportionate share of the NYSLRS net pension liability. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability is determined by an actuarial valuation as of April 1st each year
and rolled forward to March 31st. The Corporation's proportion for the net pension liability for each fiscal
year was based on the Corporation's indexed present value of future compensation to NYSLRS of all
participating employers for 2016 and 2015, which was 0.7228% and 0.7137%, respectively.
(a) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability for the March 31, 2016 measurement date was determined using an
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2015 with update procedures used to roll-forward the total pension
liability to March 31, 2016. The actuarial valuations used the following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Cost of living adjustments
Mortality improvement

2.5%
3.8%, including inflation
7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense
1.3%
Society of Actuaries MP-2014

The total pension liability for the March 31, 2015 measurement date was determined using an
actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2014 with update procedures used to roll-forward the total pension
liability to March 31, 2015. The actuarial valuations used the following actuarial assumptions:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Cost of living adjustments
Mortality improvement

2.7%
4.9%, including inflation
7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense
1.4%
Society of Actuaries MP-2014
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Note 9.

Pension Plan (Continued)

(b) Expected Rate of Return on Investments
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return,
net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table at December 31, 2016 and 2015:
Long-Term
Target
Expected
Asset
Real Rate
Asset class
Allocation
of Return
Domestic equity
International equity
Private equity
Real estate
Absolute return strategies
Bonds and mortgages
Other
Cash

38.0%
13.0%
10.0%
8.0%
3.0%
18.0%
8.0%
2.0%
100.0%

7.3%
8.6%
11.0%
8.3%
6.8%
4.0%
21.1%
2.3%

(c) Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was
7.0% and 7.5%, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based
on those assumptions, the NYSLRS fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on NYSLRS investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
The following presents the Corporation's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0% at December 31, 2016 and 7.5% at December 31, 2015, as well as
what the Corporation's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current
rate:
1% Decrease
(6.0%)
Corporation's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

$

261,584

1% Decrease
(6.5%)
Corporation's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

$

38

160,718

Discount Rate
(7.0%)
$

116,006

1% Increase
(8.0%)
$

2015
Discount Rate
(7.5%)
$

24,112

(7,002)

1% Increase
(8.5%)
$

(91,217)
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Pension Plan (Continued)

(d) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
At December 31, the Corporation reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred outflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
$
586
$
772
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
68,821
4,188
Changes in assumptions
30,935
Corporation contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
25,235
Other
194
$
125,771
$
4,960
Total
Deferred inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual actuarial experience
Changes in proportion and differences between Corporation
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Total

$

13,751

$

6,852
20,603

$

$

4,122
4,122

The change in employer proportionate share is the difference between the employer proportionate
share of net pension liability in the prior year compared to the current year. Changes in these
amounts are amortized over a five-year closed period, reflecting the average remaining service life of
plan members.
(e) Annual Pension Expense
The Corporation's annual pension expense for calendar years ending 2016 and 2015, which includes
contributions toward the actuarially determined accrued liability and the amortization of deferred
inflows of resources, was approximately $39,500 and $20,800, respectively. During 2016, the
NYSLRS changed (reduced) the discount rate by 0.5% and incurred $68,821 in investment losses
compared to actuarial assumed investment returns. This resulted in an increase in the net pension
liability of $99,072 that is being amortized over five years. The amortization component of total
pension expense has been separately presented on the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The Corporation adopted the provisions of accounting for post-employment benefits other than pensions
in accordance with U.S. GAAP which establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and
display of OPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable,
required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental
employers. These standards provide relevance and usefulness of financial reporting by 1) recognizing the
cost of benefits in periods when the related services are received by the employer; 2) providing
information about the actuarial accrued liabilities for promised benefits associated with past services and
whether and to what extent those benefits have been funded; and 3) providing information useful in
assessing potential demands on the employer’s future cash flows.
Plan description: The Corporation provides OPEB that include basic medical and hospitalization plan
coverage to eligible retirees. Eligible retirees may only be covered under the indemnified plan of the
Corporation. To qualify, a retiree must meet various eligibility requirements as agreed to in collective
bargaining agreements. The Corporation pays varying amounts based on specific union agreements.
Funding the plan: Currently, there is no New York State statute that expressly authorizes local
governments to create a trust for OPEB purposes. Additionally, New York State’s General Municipal Law
does not allow for a reserve fund to accumulate funds for OPEB obligations. The Corporation’s Board of
Directors and management believe it is prudent to reserve funds for the Plan and have therefore internally
designated $24,831 in 2016 and 2015 for purposes of funding future post-employment benefits. These
internally designated funds are included within assets whose use is limited. In addition to the funding for
future post-employment benefits, the Corporation continues to finance current benefits on a pay-as-yougo basis.
Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation: The Corporation’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of U.S. GAAP. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
The following table shows the components of the Corporation’s annual OPEB cost for the years 2016,
2015 and 2014, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the net OPEB obligation:
2016
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligations

$

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year

29,003
6,286
(8,365)
26,924
(10,961)
15,963

2015
$

132,331

Net OPEB obligation – end of year

$

40

148,294

21,205
5,693
(5,119)
21,779
(9,307)
12,472

2014
$

119,859
$

132,331

17,712
5,230
(4,702)
18,240
(8,496)
9,744
110,115

$

119,859
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Note 10.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

The following table illustrates the Corporation’s annual OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed, and the net OPEB obligation at end of year:
2016
2015
2014
Annual OPEB cost
Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed
Net OPEB obligation at end of year

$
$

26,924
$
40.7%
148,294
$

21,779
$
42.7%
132,331
$

18,240
46.6%
119,859

Actuarial method and assumptions: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the
time of the valuation and on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members.
Calculations reflect a long-term perspective, so methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce short-term volatility.
In the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.75% investment rate of return, which is the projected long-term earning rate of
the assets expected to be available to pay benefits. Since the Corporation does not currently segregate
funding for these benefits, the appropriate rate is the expected return on the Corporation’s general assets.
Actuarial assumptions included an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.50% initially, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 3.9% for the pre-65 plan and an initial rate of 5.8%, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 3.9% for the post-65 plan over a long-term period. An assumed initial
rate of 10.5%, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 3.9% was used for the prescription drug plan
over the same time frame. All rates included a 2.25% inflation assumption. The Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL) is being amortized using the level dollar amortization period. The amortization
period is 30 years.
Note 11.

Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) Program

In April 2014, the federal government approved a New York State Medicaid waiver request to reinvest $8
billion in federal savings to support implementation of transformative reforms to the State's healthcare
system. Delivery system reforms will primarily be implemented through $7.4 billion of DSRIP Incentive
payments for community-level collaborations to achieve programmatic objectives with a goal of reducing
avoidable hospital use by 25% over five years. Additionally, $500 million was awarded through an Interim
Access Assurance Fund (IAAF) to ensure the financial viability of critical safety net providers during the
period prior to DSRIP implementation.
The lAAF, part of the DSRIP program, is a grant program authorized under the recently approved
$8 billion Medicaid 1115 waiver. Its purpose is to assist safety net hospitals in severe financial distress
and major public hospital systems to sustain key healthcare services as they participate with other
providers to develop proposals for systems of integrated services delivery to be funded and implemented
under the DSRlP. The Corporation was awarded a total of $8,484 for IAAF in 2014. The Corporation
recorded $5,400 of IAAF grant revenue during the year ended December 31, 2015. In June 2015, the
New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) announced DSRIP valuation awards, which represent
the total potential amount that each Performing Provider System (PPS) is eligible to earn in performance
payments over the five years of the DSRIP program. The Corporation-led PPS received a valuation
award of $243,020.
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Note 11.

Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) Program (Continued)

As the DSRIP program requires, the Corporation serves as fiduciary or lead entity for a coalition of
Medicaid provider and social services organizations referred to as a Performing Provider System (PPS).
The PPS is referred to as Millennium Collaborative Care (MCC). Since April 2014, the Corporation has
dedicated significant effort to enterprise-level and PPS-level preparation for participation in the DSRIP
program, and in execution of NYSDOH required organizational and project planning essential to
implementing and managing DSRIP program efforts. Notable activities include the establishment of PPS
governance structures and the operationalization of MCC which is dedicated to DSRIP implementation
and management.
During 2016, net DSRIP payments received by the Corporation totaled $15,355 ($18,190 in 2015). In
addition, $23,966 and $4,499 was recorded as grant revenue for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, based on meeting the eligibility requirements. Finally, $23,062 and $4,059, of
related grant program expenses were incurred during 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Note 12.

Care Restructuring Enhancement Pilot (CREPS) Program Grant

During 2016, the federal government approved a NYS Medicaid waiver request establishing the CREPS
Program. The Corporation was awarded a grant under the CREPS Program administered by the New
York State Department of Health. The total award amount is approximately $97,260 over the period
April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2020 in state fiscal year annual distribution amounts of $43,930, $30,010,
$13,320, and $10,000, respectively. The Corporation is responsible for achieving certain goals of the
CREPS Program in each year in order to qualify for the funding. The Corporation believes it has
achieved substantially all of the goals for year 1 of the program and has recognized related revenue in the
amount of $20,040.
Note 13.

Transactions With the County of Erie

Settlement agreement: On December 30, 2009, the Corporation and the County entered into a
“Settlement Agreement”. The Settlement Agreement resulted in the Corporation and the County entering
into a number of transactions to resolve litigation and prepare for implementing the Corporation’s master
facility plan.
In October 2012, the Corporation and the County signed an amendment to the 2009 Settlement
Agreement (the “Amendment”). The terms of the Amendment provide for the County to be reimbursed
from the Corporation for certain workers compensation claims incurred by Corporation employees that
were paid by the County. The Amendment also provides for the County to reimburse the Corporation,
over time, for post-retirement health expenses that the Corporation incurred for Corporation employees
with service time at the County.
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Note 13.

Transactions With the County of Erie (Continued)

Other transactions: Amounts that are included in operating revenues and expenses in the statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, which represent related-party transactions that
occurred between the Corporation and the County during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
are as follows:
The Corporation earned revenue totaling $2,953 and $2,800 for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, from the County. Revenue earned relates to services provided to School 84,
mental health services and various other charges related to County departments located within the
Corporation’s physical plant. The Corporation’s expenses incurred for services provided by the
County totaled $9 and $3 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Expenses
incurred include services for laboratory fees.
The net amount due from the County of approximately $18,800 and $11,800 at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, is non-interest bearing and reflect the Corporation’s net amount owed from
the County as a result of various transactions and services between parties. This balance is reported
as a component of other receivables in the statement of net position.
Note 14.

Self-Insured Obligations

The Corporation is self-insured for all medical malpractice claims for occurrences on or after January 1,
2004, and pursuant to agreement with the County, the County has agreed to provide the Corporation
indemnification for malpractice related exposures of up to $1,000 for both 2007 and 2006. Approximately
$387 and $732 of indemnification remains available for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additionally, the
Corporation began purchasing excess stop loss insurance on a claims made basis for medical
malpractice effective November 2008. The current policy provides $30,000 of coverage in excess of
$3,000 of individual claims or $10,000 in aggregate claims effective November 18, 2013. Previously the
policy provided $20,000 of coverage in excess of $5,000 of individual claims or $7,000 in aggregate
claims.
Effective April 1, 2016, the Corporation became self-insured for workers compensation claims through a
combination of self-insurance and a high-deductible plan for certain periods as follows: The Corporation
maintains a stop-loss insurance policy for the claims in excess of $750. Effective January 1, 2012, the
Corporation insured a portion of its Workers’ Compensation exposure through a claims made highdeductible plan. The Corporation remains responsible for the first $750 of an individual claim payment
after December 31, 2011. The Corporation is required to pledge certain assets under this arrangement.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, $19,198 and $19,114, respectively, has been designated to service
workers compensation claims and included as part of assets whose use is limited. The Corporation
remains self-insured for Workers’ Compensation claims prior to January 1, 2012. The County has
assumed a portion of liabilities for all occurrences originating prior to 2004.
Losses from asserted and unasserted medical malpractice and workers compensation claims are accrued
based on actuarial estimates that incorporate the Corporation’s past experience, the nature of each claim
or incident, relevant trend factors, and estimated recoveries, if any, on unsettled claims.
The Corporation has accrued $27,310 and $22,675 at 2016 and 2015, respectively, for medical
malpractice related exposures. Such amounts have been discounted at 2.0% for 2016 and 2015 and the
accrued liabilities are included within the accrued other liabilities and self-insurance obligations caption of
the accompanying statement of net position. Charges to expense for medical malpractice costs are
included within the other operating expenses caption of the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position.
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Self-Insured Obligations (Continued)

The Corporation has accrued $28,682 and $31,204 at 2016 and 2015, respectively, for workers
compensation related exposures. Such amounts have been discounted at 1.25% and the liabilities are
included within the accrued other liabilities and self-insurance obligations captions of the accompanying
statement of net position. Charges to expense for workers compensation costs approximated $6,177 and
$7,480 in 2016 and 2015, respectively, and are included within the payroll, employee benefits and
contract labor caption of the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.
Eligible retirees are provided basic medical and hospitalization coverage by the Corporation as more fully
described in Note 10.
The composition of self-insured obligations as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Beginning
Balance
Other post-employment benefits
Medical malpractice
Workers compensation

$

$

132,331
22,675
31,204
186,210

Beginning
Balance
Other post-employment benefits
Medical malpractice
Workers compensation

$

$

119,859
19,252
32,524
171,635

2016
Claims
Paid

Actuarial estimate
of claims incurred
$

26,924
5,372
4,361
36,657

$

$

$

21,779
4,093
4,276
30,148

$

$

$

2015
Claims
Paid

Actuarial estimate
of claims incurred
$

(10,961)
(737)
(6,883)
(18,581)

Ending
Balance

$

$

(9,307)
(670)
(5,596)
(15,573)

148,294
27,310
28,682
204,286

Due Within
One Year
$

$

Ending
Balance
$

$

132,331
22,675
31,204
186,210

9,737
1,161
3,247
14,145

Due Within
One Year
$

$

9,109
1,242
3,171
13,522

Medical malpractice and workers compensation amounts due within one year are management’s
estimates based on historical claims.
Note 15.

Commitments and Contingencies

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at the time. Government activity, in
recent years, has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations
by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could result in the imposition
of significant fines and penalties as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed.
While no regulatory allegations have been made against the Corporation, compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretations as well as regulatory actions
unknown or unasserted at this time. Management and its counsel are not aware of any such actions that
will have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial statements.
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Note 15.

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Loss contingency liabilities are recorded in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which requires recognition of a
loss when it is deemed probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred, and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Corporation
has recorded no loss contingencies except as disclosed in Note 14.
The Corporation leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various dates
through May 2026. Total rental expense for all operating leases was approximately $3,600 and $3,400 in
2016 and 2015, respectively.
The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of
December 31, 2016 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year:
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026

$

$

45

2,524
1,571
1,226
770
747
2,643
9,481

Supplementary Information

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Plan
(Dollars in Thousands)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Actuarial
Valuation Date
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2014

$
$
$

335,639
300,728
249,469

Unfunded AAL
(UAAL)
$
$
$

335,639
300,728
249,469
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Covered
Payroll
$
$
$

112,351
115,349
116,986

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered Payroll
298.7%
260.7%
213.3%

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Schedule of Corporation's Contributions
NYSLRS Pension Plan
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
2016
Contractually required contribution
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency

$

ECMCC covered-employee payroll

$ 186,218

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

$

26,722
26,722
-

14.3%

2015
$
$

29,771
29,771
-

$ 172,851
17.2%

2014
$
$

29,835
29,835
-

$ 162,961

2013
$
$

27,164
27,164
-

$ 151,906

18.3%

17.9%

Note: During December 2016, the Corporation prepaid its 2017 contribution to the plan in the amount of $25,235 to take
advantage of a prepayment discount in the amount of $214.
Note: GASB requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the
Corporation wil present information for those year for which information is available.
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NYSLRS Pension Plan
December 31, 2016
(Dollars in Thousands)
2016
ECMCC proportionate of the net pension liability
ECMCC proportionate share of the net pension liability
ECMCC covered-employee payroll
ECMCC proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of it's covered-employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

$

2015

0.7228%
116,006
$
186,218

0.7137%
24,112
172,851

62.3%

13.9%

90.7%

97.9%

Note: GASB requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the Hospital will present information for those years for which information is available.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Health Resources and
Services Administration:
Grants to Provide Outpatient Early Intervention Services
with Respect to HIV Disease

Federal
CFDA Number

Grant
Number

Federal
Expenditures

93.918

N/A

93.153

H12HA24856

357,244

93.924

N/A

23,196

$

744,981

Coordinated Services and Access to Research
for Women, Infants, Children, and Youth
Ryan White HIV/AIDS Dental Reimbursement and
Community Based Dental Partnership Grants
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Health Resources and Services Administration Direct Programs

1,125,421

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services pass through program from:
Health Research Inc.:
Hospital Preparedeness Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness
and Response Activities

93.817

6U3REP1505200102

23,428

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program

93.889

NU90TP000515

49,000

HIV Care Formula Grants

93.917

X07HA00025

232,358

Research Foundation for Mental Hygiene Inc.:
Cooperative Agreements to Implement the National Strategy
for Suicide Prevention

93.764

1011825

37,500

New York/ New Jersey AIDS Education and Training Center
AIDS Education and Training Centers

93.145

5 H4A HA 0071-12

29,044

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Pass Through Programs
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

371,330
$ 1,496,751

Note: There were no funds passed through to subrecipients by Erie County Medical Center Corporation.
See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Note 1.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of the Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the Corporation) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The information on this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance).
For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all federal assistance entered into directly between
the Corporation and the federal government and sub-awards from nonfederal organizations made under
federally sponsored agreements. The Schedule does not include payments received under Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursement programs. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
activities of the Corporation, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in
net position and cash flows of the Corporation.
Note 2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-122,
Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited
as to reimbursement. The Corporation has elected to not exercise its option to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
Note 3.

Other Federal Awards

There were no federal awards expended for noncash assistance, insurance, or any loans, loan
guarantees, or interest subsidies outstanding at December 31, 2016.
Note 4.

Subrecipients

The Corporation did not provide federal awards to any subrecipients during the year ended December 31,
2016.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors
Erie County Medical Center Corporation
Buffalo, New York
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component units of Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(the “Corporation”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 22, 2017. The financial statements of ECMC Foundation, Inc., the Grider
Initiative, Inc. and Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report does not include reporting on internal
controls over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with ECMC
Foundation, Inc., the Grider Initiative, Inc. and Research for Health in Erie County, Inc.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements, will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 22, 2017
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform
Guidance
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors
Erie County Medical Center Corporation
Buffalo, New York
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Erie County Medical Center Corporation's (the “Corporation”) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Corporation's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2016. The Corporation's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Corporation’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s
compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Corporation’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
We have audited the financial statements of December 31, 2016 as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and have issued our report thereon dated March 22, 2017, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

March 22, 2017
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2016

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with
GAAP:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

yes

X

no

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

X

no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
• Material weakness(es) identified?
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a)?

yes

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s)

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.153

Coordinated Services and Access to Research
for Women, Infants, Children, and Youth

93.917

HIV Care Formula Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

$

Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee?

X
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yes

750,000
no

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Section II - Financial Statement Findings
No findings noted.
Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
No findings noted.
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Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the County of Erie)
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2016
Section II – Financial Statement Findings
No findings noted.
Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
No findings noted.
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